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MISSION STATEMENT

FFIavEa B BB R R ERAHRRAOTRF KT ﬁﬁﬂ%’ﬁ‘gﬁﬁ T%E \
FAYTIE - BROEESR T FIA9ARTS |

- AR BEREERBRMET
- HERENBERTEERF
- (BERIFTRFIRAER -

Our mission is to assist the clothing industry to enhance its
global competitiveness through the adoption of an industry-led
approach to effectively strengthen our services in:

- Training and developing management and technical
professionals;

- Promoting sound commercial and industrial practices;

- Facilitating the application of innovation and
technology.
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CHAIRMAN’S FOREWORD
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Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Richard
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Chairman

2021 FHRBERHATFAN—F > ZIFK
REEBEREE - ImEREERE - B
EERRNRE  RERANEBEFRRLZE
HE > BERHEEEROHE - RRATEER

ThEFRBEETAES -

IEE8T

RIRNE T EENEFHEN - FRTFINR T
BN E - FHHEET  JRBEREE
REHBSCENEE  MaEs2ERAN
ISHBEMATAGE  XFEREBBBERAF
TEEERAKRIR o Rtk - FAFINN5HZRFZ P AOBS
RuFBRRESER  REHSERANRE
RBBERRBBERNET -

The year 2021 has been another difficult and
extraordinary year, with the pandemic continuing to
impact the global economy, business activities and
our social life. Despite the difficulties we faced, | am
pleased to report that the Authority has stayed agile
in addressing the challenges and striving to fulfil our
mission of nurturing professionals for the industry.

Nurturing Professionals

The pandemic has changed the way companies
do business and accelerated the pace of digital
transformation. Under this new paradigm, the Authority
is actively supporting the development of the new digital
economy by enhancing the application of digital skills
and knowledge among students to support the industry
in building a digital and sustainable future. To this end,
we have strengthened the digital and sustainability
elements of our curriculum to provide market-oriented
programmes that will equip students to excel in the
digital age.
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To promote VPET education, the Authority published
the second version of the Specification of Competency
Standards (SCSs) in March 2021. The SCSs set out
the knowledge, skills and competency standards
for establishing comprehensive and precise human
resources and training framework for the fashion
industry.

In December 2021, the Education Bureau appointed
the Authority as the Assessment Agency to provide
Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) assessment
service for the fashion industry. The RPL mechanism
can provide an alternative route for fashion practitioners
to gain recognition for their working experience and
professional skills acquired in the workplace, thus
enhancing their advancement opportunities in learning
or occupation.

To promote sustainable development, the Authority
has recently launched several projects to deal with
environmental issues, including a significant event, the
Fashion Summit (Hong Kong). The two-day conference
brought together more than 40 speakers worldwide to
deliver keynote speeches and panel discussions on
various sustainability issues in the fashion industry.

In 2019, CreateHK sponsored the establishment of
the Sample Development Centre to assist Hong Kong
fashion designers in creating prototype samples to
support them in building their brands. In the past two
years, the Centre has produced over 1,000 samples.

Looking back on our journey over the year, | want to
thank the Members, the industry and our partners for
their unwavering support and assistance. In particular,
| would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
outgoing Executive Director, Professor Philip Yeung,
for his achievements in spearheading many significant
developments over the past years. | would also like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to
the management and all staff for their unfailing efforts
and dedication.
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EVENTS IN BRIEF
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Fashion Summit (HK)
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With the theme “Design for the Future”, the Summit
was held on 9 and 10 September 2021 at the Hong
Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre. Mr. Edward
Yau Tang-wah, GBS, JP, Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, officiated at the
opening ceremony by delivering a keynote speech on
the first day of the Summit.

The 2-day conference addressed several important
issues with in-depth discussions on areas including
fashion design, digital marketing, sustainable education,
use of raw materials, virtual fashion and green finance.
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EXEtFEEE Design Pavilion
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Fashion Summit (HK) invited fashion designers from
Hong Kong & overseas to participate in the Design
Pavilion at CENTRESTAGE 2021. The Pavilion
displayed design collections from those prominent
fashion brands demonstrating successful cases of
creating sustainable fashion items.




EVENTS IN BRIEF

BHZE & x AJiF8MF i DIY Sustainable Dyeing
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Mr. Eric Cheung, Founder of Dyelicious, introduced using
natural dyes (made from food wastes) to dye daily fashion
products. Those natural dyes could substitute chemical dyes
and thus reduce environmental pollution from the dyeing
process.

lcoc ® F V1O



120Z L d0d3d TVNNNY V11O

T ESES

% b e iE B I
Make Your Wardrobe More Sustainable
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Ms. Karen Ho and Ms. Christine Cheng of WWF-Hong Kong
taught about how to develop a sustainable fashion buying and
consumption habit. Then, two local fashion designers, Ms.
Aries Sin and Mr. Angus Tsui, shared their experience with
fashion mix & match and talked about creating a great outlook
with stylish and environmentally friendly clothing items.

MAKE YOUR /s bee 5

MORE §

STAINABLE
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Journey to Sustainable Living
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WWEF tutors led an upcycling workshop to teach the transformation
of used T-shirts into stylish, unique and environmentally friendly

coasters.

EVENTS IN BRIEF

lcoc ® F V1O



120Z L d0d3d TVNNNY V11O

T ESES

KEE O 55T R

Virtual Face Mask Design Exhibition
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The Authority organised a Virtual Face Mask Design Competition in March 2021. The

competition was divided into “Basic Group” and “Advanced Group”. The participants
entered the competition using 3D design software to create virtual face masks. The winning

and shortlisted designs were presented in the Virtual Face Mask Design Exhibition.

PR A EF e ISR

Creative Fashion Repair Fun Fair

ERIENEZNEERAEENTFIPEE 7RIS MY
FIRAERI -
The repair workshops enabled the participants to have

creative hand-stitch skills in repairing garments in a fun-filled
atmosphere.
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FERME B 2021

My Best Trainer 2021

EXEBERE AR ERIUEIREZEH
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This event provided trainees with an
opportunity to thank their trainers who inspired
and supported them during their time at the
Authority. Let the trainers know that their hard
work made a difference to them.

EBfiELLEF 2021
Sewing Competition 2021

Al AR SR A B A L B LU R RE A Bl - ML FER LR
BB S AV EE -

The Authority organised the sewing competition to
promote sewing techniques and arouse students’
interest in sewing.
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MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY

BR{ESRE (XF) PRiEWSTE REHEL

Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Mr. CHAN Tat-pan, Dr. CHAN Yuk-mau,
Richard (Chairman) Benny Eddie
EBHREBEFELR EETREERR ERUKBRZEATRAR
representing The Federation representing the Federation of representing the Hong Kong
of Hong Kong Garment Hong Kong Industries Garment Manufacturers
Manufacturers Association Ltd.

iy

apksd
RAREE RARTE IREVE L
Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Ms. Janet CHEUNG
Milton Roger FEMERAL
EEEMHOFEBEEMRAARE ERMOBERE L) el 527
representing the Hongkong Knitwear representing The Hong Kong
Exporters & Manufacturers Exporters’ Association

Association Ltd.

IRIESEX LT AHETL Pe3 UL o

Ms. CHEUNG Suen-fei, Ms. FANG Suk-kwan, Ms. FUNG Yuen-han
Anne Katherine BTarE
EERRHRAEARTRE EEFELMHBEBHTRR representing Trade Union
representing the Hong Kong representing the Hong Kong Woollen

Garment Manufacturers and Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’

Association Ltd. Association Ltd.



HEBEL
Dr. HWONG Yau-hung,
Benny

B ZERBDHITHEIRS
nominated by the Executive
Director of the Vocational Training
Council

Prof. KAN Chi-wai

il 2 Bl R =5 By 2 T2 Al 22 Bl R =
BERE

representing the Fashion and
Textile Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council

BISTRESE
Mr. LAU Man-tung,
Benjamin

Tl S Bl foR =5 By 2 T2 A 22 Bl R =
BEEAR

representing the Fashion and
Textile Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council

EaEkE
Mr. LOK Pak-keung,
Robert

FEPEREHEEAR
representing The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of

Hong Kong

EEET LT

Ms. YANG Ming-yen,
Teresa

EEBEmERR

representing The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce

FFEBT L
Ms. SUEN Wing-sze,
Susanna

TEEHEERAKR

representing the Director-General
of Trade and Industry

1BIREN T E
Mr. YEUNG Chun-fan

FHEKREEFTEAR
representing The Federation of

Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers

BEEWTZL

Ms. WONG Wai-yin,
Joyce
SIRBFFEERERRLR

representing the Permanent
Secretary for Labour and Welfare

iHEEZS
Retired Member

(2021 £ 9 B 5 BEH)
(w.e.f. 5 September 2021)

HAEE LT
Dr. LAM Tai-fai, SBS, BBS, JP

EEFELEHBERBEAR
representing the Hong Kong Woollen
and Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’
Association Ltd.
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STRUCTURE OF THE AUTHORITY
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The Clothing Industry Training Authority was
established by statute in September 1975 according to
the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance.
The functions of the Authority as defined in Section 5
of the Ordinance are:

1.
2.
3.

to provide training courses for the clothing industry;
to establish and maintain industrial training centres;

to assist in the placement of persons completing
training courses;

to make recommendations with respect to the rate
of levy.

The Authority shall consist of 17 members of whom:

Two shall be persons nominated by The Federation
of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers;

Two shall be persons hominated by the Hong Kong
Garment Manufacturers Association Ltd.;

Two shall be persons nominated by the Fashion
and Textile Training Board of the Vocational
Training Council;

One shall be a person nominated by the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries;

One shall be a person nominated by The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong;

One shall be a person nominated by the Hong
Kong Woollen and Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’
Association Ltd.;

One shall be a person nominated by The Hong
Kong Exporters’ Association;

One shall be a person nominated by The Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce;

One shall be a person who holds office as an
official of a trade union which is registered in Hong
Kong and connected with the clothing industry;

One shall be a person nominated by the Executive
Director of the Vocational Training Council;

One shall be a person nominated by the Hongkong
Knitwear Exporters & Manufacturers Association
Ltd.;

Two shall be public officers; and

One shall be a person, not being a public officer or
person connected with any of the organisations as
mentioned above.
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To enable the Authority to better discharge its
functions and achieve its objectives, five committees
were appointed from among its 17 members to take
responsibilities of specific functions. Committees were
empowered to co-opt any person whose professional
advice is expected.

The Committees oversee specific issues that may affect
the operation of the Authority. The Authority held two
meetings to deliberate its way forward and set forth the
related strategies to cope with future changes.

The Committees will continuously pledge to monitor
the effectiveness of allocation of resources and the
efficiency of the operation of the Authority. In the long
run, the Committees aspire the Authority as a major
change agent to assist Hong Kong to become the
fashion design, development and trading hub in the
Asia Pacific Region.

Committee on Finance

Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Richard (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Tat-pan, Benny

Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Roger

Mr. LAU Man-tung, Benjamin

Mr. LOK Pak-keung, Robert

Ms. WONG Wai-yin, Joyce

Mr. YEUNG Chun-fan

Terms of Reference:

1. To negotiate with the Government on loans for
development;

2. To prepare annual estimates of income and
expenditure;

3. To be responsible for the investment of the
Authority’s funds which are not immediately
required; and

4. To advise the Authority on any other financial
matters referred to it by the Authority.

lcoc ® F V1O
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Committee on Building Development
Mr. LAU Man-tung, Benjamin (Chairman)

Mr. CHAN Tat-pan, Benny

Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Milton

Dr. CHAN Yuk-mau, Eddie

Mr. LOK Pak-keung, Robert

Ms. WONG Wai-yin, Joyce

Terms of Reference:

1. To negotiate with the Government on land grant for
Training Centres;

2. To liaise with the architect responsible for the
building of the Centres; and

3. To be responsible for matters relating to the
buildings after completion.

Committee on Courses and Equipment
Ms. YANG Ming-yen, Teresa (Chairman)

Ms. Janet CHEUNG

Ms. FUNG Yuen-han

Dr. HWONG Yau-hung, Benny

Prof. KAN Chi-wai

Ms. SUEN Wing-sze, Susanna

Terms of Reference:

1. To decide the training courses to be run, necessary
equipment and materials to be purchased, and the
disposal of finished products;

2. To be responsible for the efficient operation of the
training courses;

To maintain the standard of instruction; and

To advise on and monitor the placement of trainees
upon completion of training courses.



AHEAREEE
RRIFZZL (EFE)
ARMEFEX L
HREBERE
BiiR
S EHIR
BEHEBEXT

RETHRE:
1. AAlRERHEMEE S 2E#E

2. ER—mEBRERIHER
RARBER 23T RFHEEMIEHE
ftbi5 &) K&

4. BHEIRRBAIEIR EAthiEE -

HERHNEEE
BRKRSEE (EFE)
BRIk R FESE
BEEREL
ARHEFEZ L+
HRBxrL
BIEBE L

RETHE:

1. BEEHEREEE  aFllHEHE 2B
A - SR E MBRIS R4 S

2. REEMBEMASHHEZER ' K

3. TERENHENFERERERABIARZ
EH-

COMMITTEES

Committee on Public Relations
Ms. Janet CHEUNG (Chairman)

Ms. CHEUNG Suen-fei, Anne

Ms. FANG Suk-kwan, Katherine

Ms. FUNG Yuen-han

Prof. KAN Chi-wai

Ms. YANG Ming-yen, Teresa

Terms of Reference:

1. To make recommendations to the Authority on
publicity programme;

2. To propose an estimate of expenditure for publicity;

3. On the advice of the Authority’s Chairman, to
initiate additional activities as appropriate; and

4. To undertake such other activities as the Authority
may direct.

Committee on Staff Establishment
Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Roger (Chairman)

Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Milton

Dr. CHAN Yuk-mau, Eddie

Ms. CHEUNG Suen-fei, Anne

Ms. FANG Suk-kwan, Katherine

Dr. HWONG Yau-hung, Benny

Terms of Reference:

1. To be responsible for staffing matters including the
recruitment, salary and other conditions of service
for the Authority’s staff;

To decide any other personnel matters; and

3. To negotiate, when necessary, with Government on
the secondment of officers from the civil service.
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Staff position at the year-end is set out below:
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2

3

At the year-end, there was 41 full-time staff working in
the Authority. At the same time, the Authority engaged
29 lecturers to conduct part of the training programmes
on a part-time basis.

The Authority is committed to providing staff with
development opportunities, including academic
programmes, e-learning, internal or external courses
and workshops. Staff who pursued academic degrees
received partial sponsorship, while who those took
part in training and professional events received full
sponsorship. During the year, the Authority supported
6 staff members for their participation in 5 programmes
and activities.

BEAH
NUMBER OF STAFF

STAFF GRADE

Acting Executive Director
Director
Programme Manager
Lecturer
Project Manager
Project Officer
Project Assistant
Project Technical Staff
Administrative Manager
Administrative Officer
Administrative Assistant
Technician

Cleaner
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

SEEARS
% E W k&
Acting Executive Director
Mr. Michael K. P. Yeung

THEHE =EH
Administration Division Operation Division

HEITH : R E 3
Academic Administration Industry Support

as : Bl E B

Accounts Training Activities

BESHEREE
Building Services &
Maintenance

ANERRITH
Human Resources &
Administration

EfMEREE

|.T. Development
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Corporate
Training

128

‘Training
Programmes

2,424

In 2021, the Authority offered a series of training
programmes including higher diploma, diploma,
certificate and short courses to suit the different needs
of individuals.

This year, a total of 5,013 trainees completed the
programmes at the Authority. The number of trainees of
each programme type is summarised as follows:

Seminars/

Workshops

2,461
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TRAINING PROGRAMME
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Higher Diploma in Digital Fashion Creation

This higher diploma programme has been jointly
offered by the Li Ka Shing School of Professional and
Continuing Education of the Hong Kong Metropolitan
University since 2019. It is a two-year full-time
programme subsidised by the government under the
Study Subsidy Scheme for Designated Professions/
Sectors (SSSDP). It aims to foster a creative mindset
and equip students with technical competencies for
creating fashion-related products. Through a digital
approach to fashion design and creation, students will
be able to learn and practice skills in digital pattern
making for fashion, digital pattern cutting for fashion
and virtual fashion shows.

Diploma in Fashion Creation Technology

Diploma in Fashion Product Development

These two are QF level 3 diploma programmes and
are included in the Continuing Education Fund (CEF).
Students have to complete 12 modules in 18 months.
These two programmes equip students with technical
competence in fashion clothing creation (cut and sewn)
and competence in developing fashion products that
are commercially and technically viable.

Diploma Scheme in Fashion and Textile Studies

This programme has been designed for practitioners
in clothing and related industries as well as interested
students. It aims to equip students with the necessary
knowledge and skills to enhance their performance and
competitiveness in the ever-changing environment.

Certificate in Footwear

This programme comprises two modules: Practical
Shoemaking and Footwear Leather. Students are
equipped with the knowledge and skills in the making of
shoes with leather.

Certificate in Men’s Suit Tailoring

This programme comprises two modules: Fundamental
Men’s Suit Drafting and Fundamental Men’s Suit Makin.
It has been designed to equip students with sKkills in
body measurement, pattern making and men’s tailored
suit making.

lcoc ® F V1O
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Besides existing courses, the Authority developed
several new courses in 2021. Following are the
highlights of those new courses:

Basic Leather Products Care and Repair

This course aims to provide students with general
knowledge of the preservation, care and repair of
leather products.

Origami Tote Bag Making

This course aims to equip students with essential
sewing skills by making up an origami tote bag.

Pillowcase Making

This course aims to equip students with essential
sewing skills by making up two pillowcases.



eSS
CORPORATE TRAINING

AR EERN T REARKEREBITENESET Various tailor-made corporate trainings were organised
BRI o SiERE T RS B18  REEL for the fashion and related industries. The training

covered design, management, clothing production,
maintenance and repairing. Following is a list of the

E ~ AEEMNIZIE - LT E 2021 FM8HNE

ESCHIR corporate training organised in 2021:
3D EREFFRERE HBHTI<ERE
3D Virtual Fashion Design Digital Fashion Design

IR BRE<1T S<ERER
Laundry Operation My Journey into Fashion

—

Industry

A .| "

REACH & RAREE
REACH Regulations and Apparel
Trimmings
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MEIE R IT{FS

AR T REMNERIMEY > BITER
FERLQRALEM -  2RETBETEERE
MERHHNE TARBETRBERMNZER
B o A#R/ZAS 2021 EEW T UTRIMEER
T -

EETHRIEH S EMMAFERRENS
A A R R IR S & T FEES]

FE BE BRI A0 R DA 2 TR A SR SR (L B B2

tesh e THRBEBEDD R ERFTAER
WY RERNERRRER RO TF
i o

3D [EHIRIERE
3D Virtual Garment

BET 7H#E 3D MEMHMRRETENERAMNERE
KRG B S F 2 158 AR 22 A B A F1 T o

Trainees can learn about the application and
development of 3D fashion software in the clothing
industry and experience the basic techniques of making
a virtual garment.

RIEE

Embellishment

BEBRGEARIBRIMIRI - AIRERARMEIER
— B —E_ARIEES o
Trainees learn basic and three-dimensional embroidery

skills, and create a unique embroidery from used
garments.

SEMINAR AND WORKSHOP

The Authority organised various seminars and
workshops, which were open to the practitioners of the
industries and the public. The participants could gain
the latest knowledge in specific areas and share ideas
and experiences among the speakers. The following
seminars and workshops were organised in 2021:

+ Cotton market updates and sustainability
opportunity in the pandemic

* How to use the latest technology to improve remote
working capabilities

*  How virtual sampling transforms supply chains of
the world’s fashion industry

In addition, the Sample Development Centre organised
various workshops for fashion designers on pattern and
garment production techniques:

» <

L% U

I RESEFREE

Draping for Fashion Garment

BB M RS NMERMW - 2B BT MS AR
HAREET AR LR -

Trainees can master the technique of three-dimensional

tailoring patterns, and learn to use grey fabrics on
mannequins to make different clothing styles.




REEBE

Garment Fit

PREEFXMIEX STRATEBIRRERE LB - BIEH
o BT s EREEREMNEAE -

The technical fashion designer teaches the essential
knowledge of garment fit, including concepts,
assessment techniques, common problems and
associated ways of improvement.

I RR SRR AR AR Py

Neckline Development

BER IR ANEIF B EEE ARSI - HIEIZRE
ERRER -

The instructor teaches how to use basic pattern

modification techniques to create three-dimensional
neckline effects.

BRRE<ERE
Realising Fashion Design Idea

BEIN BR T EEEREFLETNEEERE - AHR
ETRAIA - BRFE—FERNARE -

The instructor introduces and demonstrates every stage
of fashion design, starting with the design to finally
making a fashionable garment.

i B
o

Men’s Tailoring
ERRSEMBERELARIANEHRIE  URE
BRESTRERRR SR D MM -

A Shanghai-based tailor teaches the traditional

techniques of men’s suit cutting, as well as the key
steps and essential techniques for tailoring men’s suits.

KRB RRIEEE

Pattern Construction in High Fashion

B8 2eE BB RERE - SSHSRESRAMAS
BETE

Trainees can master the pattern design techniques of
high fashion by changing the pattern structure.

BRI IECK
Style Alteration

BEAZ2EF LT - LEFRRERXAIE 1M
RIZ-
Trainees can master the skills of hand acupuncture, as

well as the alteration techniques and craftsmanship of
different clothing styles.

lcoc ® F V1O
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INDUSTRY SUPPORT PROJECT

ARBIRMIT R IR - UGBTI H
EERMBAHRFES - ESHTERATE
MEBRNRAMAGE - G LHITER
FARATE  BBEBIANLUREBEKBIEK -

BIRERBIE (BENRERBY (FZ

BE§EX )

AFREHE 2018 & 9 BA# T ARE E /<Al e
FAE (BENITERBA) - 2021 F3 8/ >
AR5 38 1 55 S — B B = VUl RA 52 e e S IR AY
CRENZERPA) - "HMHERE, » TEES
BIEEPEE, o TRMISZE L M TRRREL -

BT E ERE ]

REX "AEEERY ., e EBERETH—E
HHl > BREMSBUEXEERS EAMERNT
EFEERANEES) - BRAREIRM S —EEE X &
WEBFHSERREBRAINERE - AEET
BRETESAIFIFEM -

2020 F 8 B AR B MERR 2 1T £ 153 35
HEREEHNFAREEATERID AUTFERE
Bo2021F11 B JlRBESTEEZBMER
MEERIBERMERAERELE TAWFFLE
182021 F£12 B ARBINERE RBIER
2022 1 BE 2024 £ 12 BBREXERHR
FERB A FHARTE -

The Authority offers industry support services to assist
the industry in sustaining its competitive edge in the
global market. Utilising our in-depth industry knowledge
and technical expertise, the Authority designs and
executes solutions via training that is uniquely suited to
the needs of each organisation.

Development of Specification of
Competency Standards for Fashion
Industry (Phase Il)

The Authority published the Specification of
Competency Standards (SCS) for six functional areas
of the fashion industry in September 2018. In March
2021, the Authority published another set of SCS
for four key functional areas: Material development,
Production planning and control, Technical support and
Laundry service.

Recognition of Prior Learning

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) for the Fashion
Industry is a mechanism under the Qualifications
Framework (QF). It aims to recognise the work
experiences and competencies acquired by practitioners
at the workplace. The mechanism provides another
way for practitioners to obtain qualifications recognised
by the QF and to enhance their opportunities for further
study and career advancement.

In August 2020, the Authority was invited by the
Fashion Industry Training Advisory Committee to be the
sole RPL Assessment Agency for the Fashion Industry.
In November 2021, the Authority was approved by
the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications to be the Assessment
Agency under QF. In December 2021, the Authority
also obtained the approval of the Education Bureau for
conducting RPL assessment service for the Fashion
Industry from January 2022 to December 2024.



ESTEEIlEFFEIEMMNIRE

Projects Funded by HSBC Hong Kong Community Partnership

Programme

BV FERREERET R

FEEABEHBRSRERGTNET O FRMHE
BRI -MRETERTEINE - @2
BB AT I » SRETREMFERRE - WAL
BELFMEIZ - B PIREOBBHRF
7o &% PIFTRIFRIE R LB R R B RIR
KRR -

AJFFE - R - £EAR

AIEHE R RBBIR A B M REERHE R
FEEEANEE -  ELEREE (BREEM
184) AEtER SN —ES ARRNE
BRIENMAXRERIFHRENS 6 - BB
BERERLE RET2NENAIEFES
It R AR B IR AT AERI AR T ©

Creative Virtual Fashion Design for
Youngsters

This project provides an opportunity for young
people interested in fashion design to learn the latest
3D design computer software. It enables them to
master digital design skills, design and create virtual
fashions, and inspire their creativity to enhance their
competitiveness in the future workplace. Finally, their
creations are presented in a virtual fashion show.

Sew So Happy - Sustainable Fashion

This project aims to promote the concept of a
sustainable lifestyle through the introduction of
sustainable fashion skills. The skills (recycling and
repair) empower the community members to extend the
life of fashion garments in an enjoyable and creative
way. A competition with a fashion show showcases
participants’ creative works and demonstrates how a
sustainable lifestyle can be achieved.
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BFEMIRE

GOVERNMENT FUNDED PROJECT

RIEEEBIEIER

Projects Funded by the CreateSmart Initiative

HEBFFIRERETETERIL " NP L

TR SO ) RAFREETETIR AR EI(F
AR¥5 - LUERG thFIRIRETE L B0  tbsh
FRDERP T —RIBES RN ERERNTA
T -

EFieimiE (F#E) 2020-21
RrElg (F#E) 2020 - 2021 XA %5
KRRy o LLIBEBE AR - 455 ERFEELETED
MEAALTEL—EESEE EUHMHE
ADHFELS - EMEZE—BEEENARG - BXK
BRSNS EHERHE—EIZFE - sa,ﬁ
Eﬁﬁ“ ¥ﬁE’J‘Jﬁ%E§*EE’JH%rH@§“ Fffi
CERARAENMEBEFERMNOS -

A REREZEIMIEE

Establishing a Sample Development
Centre for Hong Kong Fashion Designers

The Sample Development Centre provides a sample-
making service for fashion designers to realise
their designs into the first garment sample for
commercialisation. In addition, the centre organises a
series of workshops on pattern and sewing techniques.

Fashion Summit (HK) 2020-21

The theme of Fashion Summit (HK) 2020-2021 is
“Design for the Future”. This project aims to build an
informative, educational and inspirational platform
for the fashion industry, especially fashion designers
and industry players. It plays a vital role in providing a
sharing platform for participants worldwide to exchange
insights on the latest sustainable fashion trends,
technology, best practices, solutions, and opportunities.

Project Funded by the Innovation and Technology Fund

AR R RS
FEBEERF—EEARANERAIERR
£ UAMMBRERFATAEEREFESE
RASE  AEXTERBRENEERE -

Prime Cooling System in Garment

This project aims to develop a cost-effective cooling
garment that efficiently reduces the skin temperature
of human prime body heat zones rested indoors in the
typical Hong Kong summer season.



BIZBERESE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

HEKRRIRBESZEER

(f&k 1B T2 (HRE) RHIEFEML)

ER

RAZEET (LUTRERE "3 ) SERIER
%29 BE 64 ERKEIMBLUT G (GllR
B) MR E - LRI HMREIENR 2021 F
12831 HNEERBREAZZFENERR
KEEMEENGSR  EREBHRNBEERE
& URMBHRRME  QREETESETEEM
3

HMIERA  ZEHMBERRCHEBEZTEGEMA
RGN (FBMFEREEL) EEMP it
Y B 2021 F£12 B 31 BROEFFEAR
MERBEZHAIELFENMBERERRESRE
WEBEE (TR (RAE) E6) BHiRE
HEZ BEE -

ERNER
HPICRBEESHMAG R (FEES
ER) EITEE - HMIEXFEITRENSE
TCEARE " BHEIHFE IR AIER
B, AR EE—FSRL - RIBFEGEED
NEEGH) (BEEFFTEZFRY (LTS
Bl ) o BB &R USETT
SRR EMBEREBEEE - HMIHEE - &M
FTESNEISEEREREE M ARMNE
STERIEHER -

To the members of Clothing Industry
Training Authority

(Established in Hong Kong under the Industrial Training
(Clothing Industry) Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Clothing
Industry Training Authority (the “Authority”) set out
on pages 29 to 64, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31
December 2021, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirement
of the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Authority in accordance
with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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AR RMEBRRARBNRME

TR (RKE) RBIAREN R Z AN ZIR
WX REFEXIKRE Rk UiRKSIEINHE
W KREERBERN  ZEREMPEERN
HBWME > RiEFEIHEEALENBRAAL
Bt LB RMBRMRTFEHENERGFE R
MBI E KRR -

ERBEHMBmRE  RZERBHN ML 8RFE
IEIEERIEES) - WIEEAER TR EEEEL
EERNER UARERAFBEEEREE
o RIERESRER ERFEIFILEE
BRI EEMERIBERLGE -

HRBEMEE M HFRRRIBNRE

BRANERE  EHMBREABEESTFER
REGFEHERMERAEARHERINEG SRR
i THESRAMERAKBETRS - Wik
RETTHEEBIREGEN > AMEHREER
EHERE - BRitbz 9 RE|EWEHMAE -
BT EMREMRENRETAEMEMAL
B FEREEFEE -

FEREESKFTNMRE  BETERRFRERR

(BABEER) ETHES  EE—EAH
MIFERABEERIR o SRR LI ERGRELERRR 5
g MRSERATMEREBERAER
EMBWMRIER B KRB IFRERAEHAOEH
RIE > RIBRARHERARRFEERK

R (FARAEFTER) ETEFNBRES
BRPERTEXHE  RiFTEXREEE -
FAFITF

Responsibilities of the Authority for the
financial statements

The Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance
requires the Authority to maintain proper accounts
and records of all income and expenditure and to
prepare financial statements comprising income and
expenditure and assets and liabilities of the Authority
that give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the Authority determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members
are responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the members either
intend to liquidate the Authority or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:



a8 B AN FT Ak FR pS BRER B SR ER T SR B F5 4R
KRIFEEARHEROVER - e RAITEE
RBFELUEEELEME - LUREETEEME
ENFEE FRAAMERMNER - &
RERFFRIRE S KRR -~ hiE - ERER
FE IRt - Bz B ARSIz £ - Fitt
R HE 3% 35 (R HREF 1 B 2 A0 B A $E SR AY EL bR
ERRAERHFHRME A B XA
JE ez

AR ST MR M BRIE S - LIERETEE
RWEFREF BEHNILIFY ERARERE
FRBEERRER -

FHEEIR BT A SR BERRIIA B R AF
BEHEFTAERA R BN S EMY -

HIlMBRAFEEL S EARNEE M
fEHi#EaR  RIBATEIMEEEE > B
ERFREESHENBEAEMINEATEE
M MR EEE Y ERNFREEZEE
NEEEXRRE - MRHKMEBRAEFEEKX
THeEM BBV RERBEIRE IR
FEREIEMBRERPERMKE - BE
BRANBEETE @ AIRFEERRIFER
BER - HfipvitamE AN AR E 5
IEFRERAS RO B ETIERE o AT - RIRFIREL

BRATREEH ERTRERRIEE -

FHEMBRAAIBEIERSN  BENA
B BERE URMBERRESFENR
MZZFEIE -

BREAMSEIRS, - IPIEFNKRBER T ERE
sTESE - SRR s EXFHBRE > QFH
FIfE AT AR5 B! P BB #2 I B {E 1) B AR BES o

LIKERTENEEFT

BBHETEAD

2022% 5H 16 H

* MEZAGEANBERFE - BUEX R -

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Authority.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Authority’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Authority regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

ERNST & YOUNG

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 May 2022
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BEmREEMZEINRR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

i ZE 2021 &F 12 B 31 HIEHFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
BT BT
HK$ HK$
A INCOME
SRR AR U &R Gross training levy 232,595 266,922
W EEBRBNER Less: Collection fee charged by Customs
and Excise Department (54,330) (43,790)
178,265 223,132
SRITFBUTA Bank interest income 16 28
EAFRRNE Receipts from training courses 10,868,915 8,741,462
TEIBEBHWA Industrial project income 12,238,656 8,276,661
B EUA Dividend income 3,812,335 2,881,479
HIGIA Sundry income 206,441 158,910
27,304,628 20,281,672
<ih EXPENDITURE
BB Audit fee 150,000 145,000
e Depreciation 426,165 449,235
SEEHEHR Expenses on publicity 22,458 18,444
—RRITEIR General administrative expenses 4,161,519 3,470,245
T¥EEMAX Industrial project expenses 9,864,922 6,266,473
bH B =ik Lecture fee on training courses 1,053,260 683,041
BImkA Staff costs 9,567,456 9,651,246
BEEI B A Training costs 82,209 42,301
HEMER Other expenses = 6,870
HeEasEnfEzd Interest expense on lease liabilities 3,703 5,227
25,331,692 20,738,082
TFEERR/ (BIR) SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 1,972,936 (456,410)
HvZmEUE /(B18) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
EREREARE - TEEH
NEERBZEMEEIE / Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be
(B1R) - reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
BRAFEEEBHEEIIA Changes in fair value of equity investments at fair
Hitb 2 EUREE AR ERE value through other comprehensive income 5,001,700 (26,173,700)
FAHEMEEUES /(BE) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
(BRFR%4) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 5001700  (26,173,700)
AEEHBEEIE /(BE) TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR 6,974,636 (26,630,110)




HIFIARER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

52 2021 ZF 12 B 31 H As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
BE5E BT b
Notes HK$ HK$
EREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BB K Property, plant and equipment 5 1,165,622 1,422,167
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 5 91,362 142,917
RAFEIAEMEEKNEEAIAE  Equity investments at fair value through other
#iRE comprehensive income 6 81,992,200 76,990,500
FE(TFRIA Prepayments 8 273,738 2,400
IERENE EARER Total non-current assets 83,522,922 78,557,984
MENEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEURIRER Accounts receivable 7 571,328 575,815
JEFFIE ~ IR REMEUWIRFR  Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 8 2,178,908 2,850,463
HE RERITAEES Cash and bank balances 9 10,155,672 14,689,509
MENEEAEEE Total current assets 12,905,908 18,115,787
mRHaE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FE{TIRTR Accounts payable 10 259,389 209,386
Htt AR R EET &R Other payables and accruals 11 3,020,756 10,238,695
HEBE Lease liabilities 5 44,652 51,641
MENBEAEEE Total current liabilities 3,324,797 10,499,722
mENEE R NET CURRENT ASSETS 9,581,111 7,616,065
HEERTEAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 93,104,033 86,174,049
ERHEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HeEasE Lease liabilities 5 50,675 95,327
BEERHE NET ASSETS 93,053,358 86,078,722
£ RESERVES
TiErEE General reserve 12 35,846,414 33,873,478
NE(EEER Fair value reserve 57,206,944 52,205,244
B E k] TOTAL RESERVES 93,053,358 86,078,722

_—7 N

CHENG Man-tak, R
BB 1E

Chairman

S

ikhard
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I EmEER

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZE 2021 F 12 B 31 HIEHFE Year ended 31 December 2021

NTERER )
Fair value ERafER BEtRER
reserve General reserve Total reserves
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
20201 8B1H At 1 January 2020 78,378,944 34,329,888 112,708,832
FAEE Deficit for the year (456,410) (456,410)
FREMEERIE - Other comprehensive loss for the year:
BAF(EETERHES Changes in fair value of equity
SIAH fthZ EU &S RO AL HE investments at fair value through other
BE (BR#E) comprehensive income, net of tax (26,173,700) - (26,173,700)
FAHEEEEE Total comprehensive loss for the year (26,173,700) (456,410) (26,630,110)
R 2020% 12831 BR At 31 December 2020 and 1 January
2021 1R 1H 2021 52,205,244 33,873,478 86,078,722
FARER Surplus for the year 1,972,936 1,972,936
FREMEEUNE : Other comprehensive income for the year:
BAT{EESIEEHEE) Changes in fair value of equity
Tl A FL th 2 T WA 4 A A A investments at fair value through other
R"E (BRR%) comprehensive income, net of tax 5,001,700 - 5,001,700
FREZEIE Total comprehensive income for the year 5,001,700 1,972,936 6,974,636
2021 12831 H At 31 December 2021 57,206,944 35,846,414 93,053,358

KRB TR (HKE) & AHENEE
RUESRE (i) BRIZEINHE (RHKRE) &6
£27(2) KRABAEI  FEEINITHE
B B RAAREE P URER A B R K Be N & & (i)
AdmEALt - B BB R - HEE
FEARIMFRIE ; (i) HEEFBINRE
AR EFEREFRMERSNEERRK
B K (iv) dliREAEEBNMEARENE
ERE A FRIE R BAEE o

Under the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)
Ordinance, the funds and property of the Authority shall
consist of (i) subject to section 27(2) of the Industrial
Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance, all amounts of
levy and surcharge collected by the Commissioner of
Customs and Excise Department of the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region;
(ii) any moneys received by the Authority by way of
grants, loans, donations, fees, rent or interest; (iii) all
moneys derived from the sales of any property held by
or on behalf of the Authority; and (iv) all other moneys
and property lawfully received by the Authority for its
purposes.



iﬁ%lﬂbzﬁ

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZE 2021 &F 12 B 31 HIEHFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
FfFEE BT BT
Notes HK$ HK$
WEEBMEBREN CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
AEEREE/ (BE) Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,972,936 (456,410)
R Adjustments for:
BAFE R A Finance cost 5 3,703 5,227
SRITFIBIA Bank interest income (16) (28)
BAFEIIAEMEEIL Dividend income from equity investments at
WRIBERE fair value through other comprehensive income 6 (3,812,335)  (2,881,479)
HEME - BEREHEZ Loss on disposal of items of property, plant
api] and equipment = 6,870
e Depreciation 5 426,165 449,235
(1,409,547)  (2,876,585)
FEUIR R A / (1&00) Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable 4,487 (242,878)
FETH IE BE R Hft Decreasel/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
FEUIRFRR A / (3E70) and other receivables 400,217 (1,767,899)
FE A R R N Increase in accounts payable 50,003 5,345
Ht AR R EETE Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals
EBEgm/ Crd) (7,217,939) 1,069,498
REEIEAMARS Cash generated used in operations (8,172,779) (3,812,519)
HEEEZMNEESR Interest element on lease liabilities 14 (3,703) (5,227)
A EIEFTANIRSRE S5 Net cash flows used in operating activities (8,176,482) (3,817,746)
REXBRERERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BAYE  BERSMWIER Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 5 (118,065) (52,880)
BuF B Interest received 16 28
BRATEIAHMEEEAR  Dividends received from equity investments
BRAEIRE FTULBIAYRR B at fair value through other comprehensive income 6 3,812,335 2,881,479
BEERMEBRLREFRE Net cash flows from investing activities 3,694,286 2,828,627
MERBRERERE CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
FEMNHESHIERMEETEF  Principal portion of lease payments and cash
ARER flows used in a financing activity 14 (51,641) (50,117)
RERAEFEERRY NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
b | EQUIVALENTS (4,533,837)  (1,039,236)
FYHESRRLEHIER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,689,509 15,728,745
FRRRREFEHIEAF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR 10,155,672 14,689,509
RERAXFEHERER ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
SR CASH EQUIVALENTS
R & K ERITHEER Cash and bank balances 9 10,155,672 14,689,509
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2.1

2.2

2021 £ 12 B 31 H#F5EHmKRMIEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 DECEMBER 2021

ATEH
ARB T kB TR (RKE) &5
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2.1

2.2

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Authority is established in Hong Kong
under the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)
Ordinance. The Authority is a not-for-profit
organization and its principal activities are to
provide training courses for the clothing industry,
establish and maintain industrial training centers,
assist in the placement of persons completing
training courses and make recommendations
with respect to the rate of levy.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income
which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”).

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Authority has adopted the following revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 16 and HKAS 39

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early adopted)

The adoption of the above revised standards
has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements and there has been no
significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Authority has not applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued
but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture *

HKFRS 17
Insurance Contracts *
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Insurance Contracts *°
Amendments to HKAS 1

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current %*

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies °
Amendments to HKAS 8

Definition of Accounting Estimates *
Amendments to HKAS 12

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction *

Amendments to HKAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use '

Amendments to HKAS 37

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’

Annual improvements fo HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023

* No mandatory effective date yet determined
but available for adoption
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

* As a consequence of the amendments
to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align
the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

® As a consequence of the amendments to
HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS
4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

The Authority is in the progress of making an
assessment of the impact of these new and
revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So
far, the Authority considers that these new
and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Authority’s result of
operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Authority measures its listed equity
investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2- based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3- based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Authority determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Authority assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If such an
indication exists, the Authority makes an estimate
of the asset’s recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash- generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of the impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. The reversal of the
impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the
Authority if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Authority;

(i) has significant influence over the
Authority; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Authority or of a
parent of the Authority;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Authority are
members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Authority are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Authority or an entity related
to the Authority;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) @ person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Authority.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to net income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the major
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Authority recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Owned assets

Buildings Over 25 years
Leasehold improvements 10%

Plant and machinery 10%

Fixture, fitting and equipment 10% - 20%

Right-of-use assets

Fixture, fitting and equipment Over the
lease term

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in net income in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financial component or for which the
Authority has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financial
component are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15. All the other
financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
when the Authority commits to purchase or sell
the assets.

(a) Classification and measurement

Debt instruments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, subject to impairment if
the assets are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows where those
contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest.

Equity investments are measured at fair
value through profit or loss unless, on initial
recognition, the Authority has irrevocably
elected to designate such investments
that are not held for trading as equity
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends of such
investments are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the Authority’s right to
receive payment is established. Changes
in the fair value of such investments are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and are never recycled to the statement of
profit or loss even when the assets are sold.

(b) Impairment

The Authority applies the expected credit
loss model on all the financial assets
that are subject to impairment, financial
guarantee contracts, contract assets
under HKFRS 15 and lease receivables
under HKFRS 16. For trade receivables
and contract assets without a significant
financial component, the Authority applies
the simplified approach which requires
impairment allowances to be measured at
lifetime expected credit losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
(b) Impairment (continued)

For other financial assets, impairment
allowances are recognised under the general
approach where expected credit losses are
recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
where there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Authority
is required to provide for credit losses that result
from possible default events within the next
12 months. For those credit exposures where
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure irrespective of the
timing of the default.

The Authority considers a default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Authority has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that
a more appropriate default criterion should be
applied.

(c) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired; or where the Authority has transferred
its contractual rights to receive the cash flows
of the financial assets and has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership; or where control is not retained.

Financial liabilities

The Authority’s financial liabilities include lease
liabilities, accounts payables, other payables and
accruals. They are initially recognised at fair value of
the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, they are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are
extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged
or cancelled, or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Authority expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Authority will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Authority and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Authority a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Training levy income is recognised based on a fixed
percentage on the F.O.B. value of clothing (including
footwear) items exported from Hong Kong on a
monthly basis advised from the Customs and Excise
Department.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Training course income and industrial project
income are recognised on a time proportion
basis over the period of the respective course.
The performance obligation is satisfied over
time as services are provided and short-term
advances are normally required before rendering
the services.

As a practical expedient, the transaction
prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
are not disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements because all the remaining
performance obligations in relation to training
course are a part of contracts that have an
original expected duration of one year or less.
In addition, in relation to rendering services for
industrial project, the Authority has a right to
consideration from its customers in an amount
that corresponds directly with the value to
the customers of the Authority’s performance
obligations completed to date.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Authority and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the
Authority has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays the consideration
before the Authority transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Authority
performs under the contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset and the right to direct
the use of the identified asset. All leases with a term
of more than 12 months are recognised as assets
representing the right of use of the underlying asset
and liabilities representing the obligation to make lease
payments, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Both the assets and the liabilities are initially measured
on a present value basis. Right-of-use assets are
recognised under property, plant and equipment and
are measured at cost or valuation less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liabilities. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the useful lives of the assets and
the lease terms. Lease liabilities are initially measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made
under the lease terms and subsequently adjusted
by the effect of the interest on and the settlement of
the lease liabilities, and the re-measurement arising
from any reassessment of the lease liabilities or lease
modifications.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank
balances.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Authority provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and
utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the end of each reporting
period for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme contributions

The Authority operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to net income
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Authority in an independently administered
fund. The Authority’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Authority’s financial
statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of income,
expenditure, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Authority's
accounting policies, management has made the
following judgement, apart from those involving
estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Leases — whether a contract contains a lease
under HKFRS 16

The Authority has several lease contracts and it
applies judgement in evaluating whether those
contracts contain a lease defined under HKFRS
16. The Authority also considered the substance
of the contracts as to what the payment or
contract faithfully represents for which the
judgement is made, and such assessment is
made on an individual contract basis.

lcoc ® F V1O



120Z L d0d3d TVNNNY V11O

EXEEHFIER MG (#8)

HETZ THBRE

AR RSN T —EMHNEFEEERRE
FREMERFHEARAR - BREERRE
HAR RS ET TR R H it T B AR
BRANEZ RN T XA °

FEYG IR =Lt

FEUIR AR B B2 BN HTRIAGEE
BB ROERER o 3l R 5 AR 1% fE B FE L =X IR
RMEEWKRE  LURIKRBZESRESH
ROEBLEEMATEMEEN - LUELR
RAMEEWANRES EFHFIE - B
LR Ex M ST RO B L AT REH BT (ARG R =
SEARE  AJRFRHEDETERN
RRE %R - BRI E—SFHME
HIE R EaRRMIEE 7 -

FRrig#t
KIBIRTEIEGIZE 88 1& - ARB eI EE
REMIEBIPFTBEIRIA - Bt - AT
BRERBRFHEMEEMNEHRLELR
IR o

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The impairment provisions for accounts
receivable are based on assumptions about
expected credit losses. The Authority uses
judgements in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the number of days that
an individual receivable is outstanding as well
as the Authority’s historical experience and
forward-looking information at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the results
of the assessment and it may be necessary to
make an additional impairment charge to profit or
loss. Further details of the accounts receivable
are given in note 7 to the financial statements.

INCOME TAX

The Authority has been exempted under Section
88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance from all
taxes under the Ordinance. As a result, no
provision for Hong Kong profits tax or deferred
taxation is required in these financial statements.



5. Y% -WE - BiERESERE 5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASE LIABILITIES
HREEE
Right-of use BFEEE
assets Owned assets
BEERE BEERE
KiEREME KiEREME
Fixture, HEEE HERES Fixture,
fitting and BT Leasehold Plant and fitting and = =5
equipment Buildings improvements Machinery equipment Total Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2021 128 31 December 2021
318
#2021 E1 8 At1January 2021:
18
BA Cost 225,509 19,413,409 8,283,074 273,099 7,990,136 35,959,718 36,185,227
RiENE Accumulated
depreciation (82,592)  (19413409)  (8,249,071) (254,106) (6,620,965)  (34,537,551)  (34,620,143)
REEE Net carrying
amount 142,917 - 34,003 18,993 1,369,171 1,422,167 1,565,084
#2021 F 18  At1January 2021,
18 Mk net of accumulated
RREINE depreciation 142,917 - 34,003 18,993 1,369,171 1,422,167 1,565,084
HE Additions - - - 118,065 118,065 118,065
ERINEREHE  Depreciation provided
during the year (51,555) - (17,003) (5,194) (352,413) (374,610) (426,165)
#2021 £12 B At 31 December 2021,
31 8 Mk net of accumulated
RRINE depreciation 91,362 - 17,000 13,799 1,134,823 1,165,622 1,256,984
#2021 £12 B At 31 December 2021:
31 H:
A Cost 225,509 19,413,409 8,283,074 273,099 7,913,598 35,883,180 36,108,689
RiENE Accumulated
depreciation (134,147)  (19,413,409) (8,266,074) (259,300) (6,778,775)  (34,717,558)  (34,851,705)
IREFHE Net carrying
amount 91,362 - 17,000 13,799 1,134,823 1,165,622 1,256,984
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5. WX R

2020128
318

R 2020% 1B
18+

2N
ZRIE

REFE

#2020%F 18

31 December 2020
At 1 January 2020:

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net carrying
amount

At 1 January 2020,

18 Mk net of accumulated
RiENE depreciation
hE Additions
FRITERRBE  Depreciation provided
during the year
HE Disposals
#2020%F 12 B At 31 December 2020,
31 8 0k net of accumulated
ZRIE depreciation

#2020 £12 B At 31 December 2020:

31 -
A
ZHE

fREFE

BfaE
(@)

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net carrying
amount

ARBEEZE

HERNERH - ELHEEER
DEMAHBE  FHIRB 2 FE
4 F > EFRRBEMEARIERERE
KATRHERIAZEER

HiERiHEEE (8) 5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
REEE
Right-of use BEEE
assets Owned assets
BEEHRE - BEEHRE -
RIERE K B & RIERE K
Fixture, HEEE e Fixture,
fitting and B¥F Leasehold Plant and fitting and &% a3
equipment Buildings improvements Machinery equipment Total Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
225,509 19,413,409 8,283,074 273,099 7,937,256 35,906,838 36,132,347
(31,038)  (19413409)  (8,225,395) (248,571) (6,245,625)  (34,133,000)  (34,164,038)
194,471 - 57,679 24,528 1,691,631 1,773,838 1,968,309
194,471 - 57,679 24,528 1,691,631 1,773,838 1,968,309
- - - - 52,880 52,880 52,880
(51,554) - (23,676) (5,535) (368,470) (397,681) (449,235)
- - - - (6,870) (6,870) (6,870)
142,917 - 34,003 18,993 1,369,171 1,422,167 1,565,084
225,509 19,413,409 8,283,074 273,099 7,990,136 35,959,718 36,185,227
(82,592)  (19,413,409) (8,249,071) (254,106) (6,620,965)  (34,537,551)  (34,620,143)
142,917 - 34,003 18,993 1,369,171 1,422,167 1,565,084
Notes:
RE&EREBL (a) The Authority leases certain of its office

equipment used in its operations. Leases
for these assets are negotiated for terms
ranging from two to four years with no
extension or termination options and all the
lease payments are fixed.



ME -BE SERESAE (8E) 5.

HESEFEAA MR

—FA Within one year
—FZ#%BETEAEA After one year but within five years
HERE (FAIR) Lease liabilities (undiscounted)
MIRE%E Discount amount

HERE (BHR) Lease liabilities (discounted)

TRED Current

782021 & 12 A 31 HEEMEHERER
INFE T 193718 fE B FI RFEEB A 3% (2020
TF 1 3%)

#2021 12 A 31 HK 2020 fF 12
A 31 HEEHARGRZREE(L

R2020% 1A 1H At 1 January 2020
FZAVFIE Accretion of interest
;I8 Payments

2021 F1H81H At 1 January 2021
FZRYFI S Accretion of interest
;I8 Payments

& 1k 2021 £ 12 B 31 H % 2020 &
12 A31 HEFE#EZRIERREN

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

Maturity profile of lease liabilities

2021 2020
AT BT
HK$ HK$

46,816 55,344

52,080 98,896

98,896 154,240

(3,569) (7,272)

95,327 146,968

44,652 51,641

50,675 95,327

The weighted average incremental borrowing
rate applied to the lease liabilities recognised at
31 December 2021 was 3% (2020: 3%).

Movements of carrying amounts of lease
liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020

BT
HK$
197,085
5,227
(55,344)
146,968
3,703
(55,344)
95,327

Amounts recognised in the statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020

2021 2020

BIT BIT

HK$ HK$

EHEESEREER Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 51,555 51,554
HEEENFEELH Interest expense on lease liabilities 3,703 5,227
55,258 56,781
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ME -BE RfERBES&EHE(E)

20215 JlIHENEERRS RN
A HK$55,344 (2020 £ : HK$55,344 ) ©
FIBF - 5% 2021 £ % 2020 FE)RBIEMIE
HeiBEnNFREEENHEaE -

BATEYAHfth 2 mE U A
ERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The Authority had total cash outflows for leases
of HK$55,344 in 2021 (2020: HK$55,344). The
Authority did not have any non-cash additions of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in 2021
and 2020.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

2021 2020
AT AT
HK$ HK$

TTHABHEISE - #RAT{EST © Listed equity investments, at fair value
EEERHIRAR HSBC Holdings plc 28,110,000 24,450,000
KERHERAR Swire Pacific Limited 5,340,000 5,160,000
BEREEEBRAR Power Assets Holdings Limited 15,972,000 13,860,000
FHIEEEFRAT Hysan Development Company Limited 6,989,000 8,250,500
ISR EREARAR Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited 11,281,200 11,900,000
IHESRITBRRAR) Hang Seng Bank Limited 14,300,000 13,370,000
81,992,200 76,990,500

MR EEAELIREREBRMRMYE
Ll Bz B iR E A A HgH DL A FEET A
HAth ZmEULEE -

HE221F12831MHLEFE RN
HEBWRNRESIES R AEE T
B% B[R /A 7 HK$1,026,258 ; K & B% 15
R A R HK$240,000; EEEE X B R
A Bl HK$930,262 ; # 1 B 2 B[R 2
7 HK$416,765; STEE M EZE TR
A B) HK$589,050 R R £ R 1T AR A &
HK$610,000 °

The above equity investments were
irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Authority
considers these investments to be strategic in
nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Authority received dividends in the amounts
of HK$1,026,258, HK$240,000, HK$930,262,
HK$416,765, HK$589,050, HK$610,000 from
HSBC Holdings plc, Swire Pacific Limited, Power
Assets Holdings Limited, Hysan Development
Company Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited and Hang Seng Bank Limited,
respectively.



= U W 3K

FEUIRRR Accounts receivable

AREEEFNZHERUEERE -
EEH—MAB30 B BEAEFEES
S8R - FIHR /3 AR £ I R (8 & FE U R
oo G NBEERKEERR  SHRE
EASETHERGHMAER - BN Lt
B BRIKEERERRELSKET
FMENER T FEANEFE
B E R o 38R 58 R B R e U IR R A
BRAETMRMREAMEEERK B
IR A TETR

ARBHREABIE R ERETBMERSE
#BIZE 9 AT ERNTEHREERIE » &
ZEB AT EAMERIIRANZEFE
HAFE FEHRERIE - ARt ETEHEERHIE -
FEWIREREBEEEERRITEREEA
Foilc REEEBESLEREMEE
¥} o #1F 2021 12 B 31 HE 2020
F12 A 31 B ilRBEEEEMER
SHEBE IRHBEETHEZFLATE
g °

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2021 2020
AT AT
HK$ HK$

571,328 575,815

The Authority’s trading terms with its customers
are mainly on credit. The credit period is
generally around 30 days. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Authority seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has an accounting department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Authority’s accounts receivable relate to a
large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Authority does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its accounts receivable
balances. Accounts receivable are non-interest-
bearing.

The Authority applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss model for all accounts
receivable. To measure the expected credit
losses, accounts receivable have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit
losses have also incorporated forward looking
information. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Authority assessed the loss allowance under
the application of HKFRS 9 was immaterial.
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10.

RMAKIE - B RE M EUWIRRRK 8.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
BIT BT
HK$ HK$
Si-ANEO] Prepayments 706,028 641,844
e REAMAEIIRSR Deposits and other receivables 1,746,618 2,211,019
FE(TFRIE « R RE MR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,452,646 2,852,863
A IERENFRIT IR Less: non-current prepayments (273,738) (2,400)
FE(IFIE « RS REMEIRR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 2,178,908 2,850,463

#wE REMEYIRL B

# 1k 2021 £12 831 HR 2020 F 12
A 31 B #&E Kk H M ERIRR R EE
PWREATEERS - GRANEGEHEAN
EEMRREERMECHKTME  #LE
2021 12 A 31 HKR 2020 F 12 A 31
HERHE B R IaREE A ImEE sy -

RERIVITHER 9.

R KERITHEER Cash and bank balances

|ITEFALUBHERTEFRNERTE - &
BUZENF RFBUIA - SRITREERTFINE
A RIFERTT M AN SEHIEC 8% ©

& 3 bR X 10.
FEIRSRATFETE - B — /AR 30 B
P ©

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

The carrying amount of deposits and other
receivables approximated to their fair value as at
31 December 2021 and 2020. Their recoverability
was assessed with reference to the credit status
of the debtors, and the expected credit losses as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were considered
to be minimal.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2021 2020
AT AT
HK$ HK$

10,155,672 14,689,509

Cash at banks earn interests at floating rates
based on daily bank deposits rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on 30-day terms.



11.

Hith BT iR X B2 & 2 R

EHaE Contract liabilities
HAthrEIRER Other payables
FEStEH Accruals

BfFEE -

(a) #i1E2021 %12 831 Bk 2020
F12R 31 HZEMRMEFLNT:

11.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2021 2020

B 5% BT BT
Notes HK$ HK$
(a) 2,099,278 8,953,222
(b) 539,915 618,781
381,563 666,692

3,020,756 10,238,695

Notes:

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31

December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
AT AT
HK$ HK$

HWEEINELZ A5BEFE(15;  Short-term advances received from customers

EENIERFE Training courses
T#15H Industrial projects
HWEWBRE Total contract liabilities

ENBEABFERMIEINFREMIE
HHEMRBZEHENSR &
2021 FENRBRIEIEZEZARN
FERAREFRMAN T 2158 MR
TEATULEN B RS BAFE A 7R0RL D AT EY -

FERERARSHAST ARSI
BHNEENCHEBNEERRLLL
A2 SE A RIRETT B E T LUFESS -

1,368,069 1,264,036
731,209 7,689,186
2,099,278 8,953,222

Contract liabilities include short-term
advances received to provide training
courses and consultancy services for
industrial projects. The decrease in contract
liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the
decrease in short-term advances received
from customers in relation to the provision
of consultancy services for industrial
projects at the end of the year.

The following table shows the amounts of
revenue recognised in the current reporting
period that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2021 2020
BT BT
HK$ HK$

STAMEHIIAHIAMER  Revenue recognised that was included
EREERU A in contract liabilities at the beginning of

the reporting period:

EENIERFE Training courses

T#18H Industrial projects

(b) EfuEMRIATITE FIHRA=M@ER -

1,692,690 1,245,729
6,703,914 3,668,045
8,296,604 4,913,774

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing

and have an average term of three months.
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12.

13.

14.

LB R 12.

R T RGN (RKRE) FOHIET &
AR MLIFENFFRANES (i) 7
EERFMN  FHREAFARIITHER
REHARER (FHARAER) AtEHK
B — AR EE M E B MR RAVERITEL
REERT S B (i) EHHRRRSLH
o AIRBEEINIRBRAEGHRIRR
7 o

FREALRS 13.

REEAR IIREEEMEALTZEXR
LHME

ARBEEEIE NS Z WA -

AR EEF Short term employee benefits
fisgERIRERER 14.

EMEBREENBEEEL

GENERAL RESERVE

In accordance with the Industrial Training
(Clothing Industry) Ordinance Section 17, all
funds of the Authority that are not immediately
required may be (i) deposited on fixed deposit
in any bank or savings bank nominated by
the Financial Secretary of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Financial Secretary”) either generally or, in any
particular case, for that purpose; or (ii) subject
to the prior approval of the Financial Secretary
invested in such investments as the Authority
thinks fit.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Authority:

2021 2020
AT AT
HK$ HK$

1,191,667 2,407,860

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

HEEa®’
Lease liabilities
AT
HK$
520201 R 1H At 1 January 2020 197,085
SRIREMAVEL Changes from financing cash flows:
HEBENEAESR Capital element of lease liabilities (50,117)
H1ttryEL - Other changes:
HEaENMPEFER Finance charge on lease liabilities 5,227
FELZH Interest expenses (5,227)
72020 F12 B31 Bk 2021 1B 1H At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 146,968
SRR ERAEL Changes from financing cash flows:
HEBENELRESR Capital element of lease liabilities (51,641)
HAthpy Bt - Other changes:
HERENMBER Finance charge on lease liabilities 3,703
FMEZH Interest expenses (3,703)
$ 2021 F£12H8 31 H At 31 December 2021 95,327




15.

ARSI SMNEMIA 15.

AR R T B sR SRR BRE(EANT

2021
EMEE

BATEIIAHtE
EUEEORRIER E

FEUTIRTR

ERBEGIETAN
I8~ IRE R EAE
kR (BEE8)

BERIRITREES

ERBRE

FEATIRR

TRBEEERM
FEf MR R AT B

HERME

Financial assets

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Accounts receivable

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (note 8)

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories

of financial instruments as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

BAFETIA
HithZEUaEs
HemEE
Financial assets TR EHRL AT
at fair value ABEREE
through other ~ Financial assets
comprehensive at amortised =1
income cost Total
BT BT BIT
HK$ HK$ HK$
81,992,200 - 81,992,200
- 571,328 571,328
- 1,746,618 1,746,618
- 10,155,672 10,155,672
81,992,200 12,473,618 94,465,818
REHERAIANERAE
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost
BT
HK$
259,389
774,908
95,327
1,129,624
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15.

REMNBINEMTIR (1) 15.

2020
ERMEE

BATHETIAE E
E AR ERE

FEUIRTR

EMEERERTM
5~ RERHAE
WRsR (BfEE8)

RERIRITHEER

ERBE

FEAIRTR

TRBEEEHM
FEfMRFR R FER &

HERME

Financial assets

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Accounts receivable

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (note 8)

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

BAFETIA
Hih 2w
HEmEE
Financial assets TRIBEHRL AT
at fair value AR EREE
through other  Financial assets
comprehensive at amortised =1
income cost Total
BT ABIT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
76,990,500 - 76,990,500
- 575,815 575,815
- 2,211,019 2,211,019
- 14,689,509 14,689,509
76,990,500 17,476,343 94,466,843
REHERAIANSRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost
BT
HK$
209,386
989,768
146,968
1,346,122




16. EMEERKBFENATREFEREE

#1E 2021512 B 31 HkK 2020 12
A3 B FTEEINNHEFHLMTA
AT RS -

2021 12A31H
2REEEATEEE

RATFEFIAE  Equity investments at fair
fEEUEEAIAE  value through other
EIRE comprehensive income

LTHRRERE Listed equity investments
(&#) (Hong Kong)

2020 128 31H

THEEHL TFEEEFE
RAFEIIAE  Equity investments at fair

EEUEEAIAE  value through other
RE comprehensive income

LTHRRERE Listed equity investments
(&#) (Hong Kong)

FEA F-—EBRE_EBZBEILEEM
B LRSAEBASBHE=E -

EEBZLETERERBENATERKRA

BhinR{EREET -

ARBF L ERRS - SMEERLETR
TRIE 2 EtBRIRS - RER
IRITHEES - BARMKRMBRGEER
AR KRB ERNAFEERK
EEMRE  FEEHMNEFTANRELHS
VR ES

16.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following table provides the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Authority’s

financial instruments as at 31 December 2021
and 2020:

31 December 2021

Financial assets measured at fair value

NIz =HBe *E‘

Fair value measurements categorised into

F—E EE E=E &5
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
81,992,200 - - 81,992,200

31 December 2020

Financial assets measured at fair value

E—E ETE E=E &5
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
76,990,500 - - 76,990,500

There have been no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, and no transfers into or out of Level
3 during the year.

The fair values of listed equity investments in
Hong Kong are derived from quoted prices in
active markets.

The Authority has assessed that the fair values
of accounts receivable, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
cash and bank balances, accounts payable and
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.
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17.

E= R s EE B A RBER

dRENEREM T AGREREE ARTT
it B K 4% N B 5 A ELAth 2 T UL & A AR
BRE FERFEMIANEIEEN
ERIIMENEREEES - KRB
BEZENEERBREPEREENHMS
MEERRE  fIABKIES €&
EBEBRMANRIA - &RE - HMUEKRIRMK
REMERRAREMBESEEMEMNIK
MREETER -

EREFER  RINEBOEEK @ I E
EFEEMITANRZS -

AlREER T ARS RN ERERRS

R RERER - EEERARBEER
b o BB B EEBRAURAZTEHEE
ELEBAIEK - HEBENT -

REETEE %

B ARNHSERERER T2
BRENRRIRATFEIARMEERIEE
R IR B MFERZ B TH IR (B4 - 3l #R
RERERERZTAELSA LHmAIR
3 Wt EMRZHBRETE -
mEZEBAMEFAEETRARNIKRE
HAaREREEER -

TR EFEBZZAMBRMDER > &
BRERTHRNREZZWHERH - L
REARBRRERHIHE

FE - BEEY
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index(Hong Kong)

TR EFMBHMEBHIF I B 2B
AT RRETEARBFRER - LEKREE
BEE  RERENBREPREERAZL
FlEEEE 1% B HEAEE 28R
B - EAMBNEREREREERER
ERENEMGFEBRRGTEREFRESR
Bix/ (Big) ATRERMRRE -

17.

12831 H 2021
31 December

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Authority’s principal financial instruments comprise
cash and bank balances and equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Authority’s operations. The Authority
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as accounts receivable, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
accounts payable and financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, which arise directly from
its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review,
the Authority’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Authority’s financial
instruments are equity price risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The members of the Authority reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Equity price risk

The Authority’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market prices relates primarily to the Authority’s equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income with floating market prices. The Authority’s
equity investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock
exchange and are valued at quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period. The members of
the Authority manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks.

The market equity indices for the Hong Kong stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

2021 & =/ 5 2020 & = /1K
12831 H 2020
High/low 31 December High/low

2021 2021 2020 2020

31,183/ 29,175/

23,112 22,665 27,231 21,139

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
1% change in the fair values of the equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at
the end of the reporting period. For the purpose of
this analysis, for the equity investments, the impact
is deemed to be on the equity investment revaluation
reserve and no account is given for factors such as
impairment which might impact on surplus/ (deficit).



17. ZMEMEEMBMNRBER (1)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

g /CrA ) Em/CRD)

IREE fEfRAEEE
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in carrying in total
amount reserves
Bk BT
% HK$
2021 2021
RATEFIAEMEEIEI  Equity investments at fair value through other
BHEE LTRERE comprehensive income listed in Hong Kong +1% 819,922
BAFEIIAEMEEIN  Equity investments at fair value through other
BREALTRERE comprehensive income listed in Hong Kong -1% (819,922)
2021 2021
RAFEIIAEMEEI  Equity investments at fair value through other
BmEE ETRRERE comprehensive income listed in Hong Kong +1% 769,905
BRATEFIAHMEEIE  Equity investments at fair value through other
WHEE LHRERE comprehensive income listed in Hong Kong -1% (769,905)
IEEE Credit risk

ARBAAARITHERIIBETENRERLIER
MEMEER  MEEBTHEZER
HERASREEER MR RERE
REBRFNE=ZBETIS - BRI
MENBER  FTARREEHRFETZ
ZNEFIAAMRE  HERELEERHE
ARERE T KBRS LRBEE
EEETRIRBRRI - s - ElEE
FigE R EWIRAVREER B - Al 4R
RIRIREEI T EKX o

dEEtEMEENEGRR (B
BERIRITHEES - BE - HMEKR
BRATEIAEMEE WA RER
&) REXZHFEN  msARFRN
ZEERMTEREFERRR

MRElERAMABREEBRIFNE=
BRERT - WERBRS - FRE L
RERBEFNESRR

All the Authority’s bank balances are held in
major financial institutions located in Hong Kong,
which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Authority trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Authority’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are required to pay deposit in
advance except for certain customers who have
signed strategic alliance agreements to jointly
develop ongoing projects with the Authority. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Authority’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Authority’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and bank
balances, deposits, other receivables and
equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Authority provides services only to
recognised and creditworthy third parties, there
is no requirements for collateral. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Authority.
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17. EMEBERNBMNREE () 17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
EEREE (/&) Credit risk (continued)
e E s R FEF R Maximum exposure and year-end staging
TREBIABOE NS TER s el o e ety e
E%E%%E%@,Bﬁ ’ Bﬁiﬁgéﬁﬁﬁgﬁ Authority’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
IR AHENEAESHMEN - TEI past due information unless other information is
TEIELREER » RRAFE 12 B available without undue cost or effort, and year-
31 B2 FRPEEE SR EER - KT end staging classification as at 31 Decemt?er.
. ) The amounts presented are gross carrying
AU EENRERE amounts for financial assets.
2021 12H31H 31 December 2021 12 @A
EEE1E
12-month S HITRHRE B &1
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
L%
E—PEEY FEREEr HEZ=FEEX  Simplified =L
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
BT BT BIT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
FELSTRSR * Accounts receivable’ - - - 571,328 571,328
SREELIETAN Financial assets included in
B REREME  prepayments, deposits and
LTIRFR other receivables
-EET - Normal” 1,746,618 - - - 1,746,618
& KERITHEER Cash and bank balances
- MR AR - Not yet past due 10,155,672 - - - 10,155,672
11,902,290 - - 571,328 12,473,618
2020 12 H31H 31 December 2020 12 @A
EEE1E
12-month ZHATRHRE BE 18
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
BiL7*E
E—PEEY  ETPREEY  E=PEEX  Simplified =L
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
AT AT AT AT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
FEL RSN ™ Accounts receivable’ - - - 575,815 575,815
SREESIETAN Financial assets included in
B MEREME  prepayments, deposits and
IIRFR other receivables
-EET - Normal” 2,211,019 - - - 2,211,019
B & KERITHEER Cash and bank balances
- i SRAIEA - Not yet past due 14,689,509 - - - 14,689,509
16,900,528 - - 575,815 17,476,343

sk

F 4R /B e AR RS (L 73 A ST At FE LSUIR TR AR (B - B HHE
BN MR T

HEEERMNRIE e  HUBERRERNEHE

B RERARREN  AIREEMEEZEER
HE®%RA "EE, -

For accounts receivable to which the Authority applies
the simplified approach for impairment, information is
disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.



17. ZMEMEEMBMNRBER (1)

BB 2 EfE

BN EEERERENRERAT
BEIAHMEERZAIRERSE - LU
RESERMRTBEMEZBEOFEE -

REEHR JMBENEMAEERES
FIRBEIRS AR EAE R T

FEATIRSR

THBEREAMEYS
MR FEET B R

HERRE

FEAIRTR

TRBEREEMEY
IR et E R

HERME

Accounts payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables and
accruals

Lease liabilities

Accounts payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables and
accruals

Lease liabilities

17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk

The Authority’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through investment and disposal of

equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The maturity profile of the Authority’s financial
liabilities as at the end of reporting period, based
on contractual undiscounted payments, is as

follows:
2021

FAERAS Y

D1 E
On demand or less 1EELHHF aEt
than one year One to five years Total
AT AT -
HK$ HK$ HK$
259,389 - 259,389
774,908 - 774,908
46,816 52,080 98,896
1,081,113 52,080 1,133,193

2020

FAEERAFEY

SR
On demand or less 1HES5F a&t
than one year One to five years Total
BT BT ET
HK$ HK$ HK$
209,386 - 209,386
989,768 - 989,768
55,344 98,896 154,240
1,254,498 98,896 1,353,394
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17.

18.

THEREENBHIREE (§)

BXEE
ARBEEREENETRBERRER
REFEEEMNEN  LERRBREENE
REER - RZFHER -

B EIREEAZLEE  REBRKEBRE
ZEBBERAMEEZREGSEEHH
BoEZHSNBEEALE  IKEE
RIE TR (BRE) EOAMERER
EIEHEEERUE - KRBT EM
NRZERBEKREE - HE 2021 F12
B31HK2020F 12831 HIEFE >
EEEANER BERSERLEEE o

I HMRAF

AEIFEHRFT S5 2022 F 5 8 16 HES
R B A RT3 -

17.

18.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Authority’s capital
management is to safeguard the Authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support
its business.

The Authority manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Authority may adjust
and manage all the funds and property of the
Authority in accordance with the Industrial
Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance. The
Authority is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and

authorised forissue by the members of the
Authority on 16 May 2022.
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